#### COUNCIL OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

#### NOTICE

#### D.C. Law 3-132

"District of Columbia Office of Energy Act of 1980".

Pursuant to Section 412 of the District of Columbia Self-Government and Governmental Reorganization Act, P. L. 93-198,

"the Act", the Council of the District of Columbia adopted Bill
No. 3-192 on first and second readings, November 25, 1980 and
December 9, 1980, respectively. Following the signature of the
Mayor on January 7, 1981, this legislation was assigned Act No.
3-341, published in the January 30, 1981 edition of the D.C.
Register, (Vol. 28 page 445) and transmitted to Congress on
January 13, 1981 for a 30-day review, in accordance with Section
602 (c)(1) of the Act.

The Council of the District of Columbia hereby gives notice that the 30-day Congressional Review Period has expired, and therefore, cites this enactment as D.C. Law 3-132, effective March 4, 1981.

ARRINGTON DIXON
Chairman of the Council

Dates Counted During the 30-day Congressional Review Period:

January 13,14,15,16,19,20,21,22,23,26,27,28,29,30

February 2,3,4,5,6,17,18,19,20,23,24,25,26,27,

March 2,3

D.C. LAW 3 - 132

DATE MAR 0 4 1981

AN ACT

### D.C. ACT 3 = 34 1

#### IN THE COUNCIL OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

#### JAN 0 7 1981

To establish the District of Columbia Office of Energy for the development and implementation of the comprehensive energy plan and programs, and for other purposes.

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

1

- Sec. 2. Legislative Findings and Purposes
  - (a) Findings
  - (D) Purposes

CODIFICATION
D.C.Code,
Title 1,
Chapter 19

- Sec. 3. Definitions
- Sec. 4. Energy Policy of the District of Columbia
- Sec. 5. Functions and Powers of the District of Columbia Office of Energy
- (a) Establishment of the District of Columbia Office of Energy
- (b) Appointment of the Director of the District of Columbia Office of Energy
  - (c) Powers, Duties and Functions of the Director
  - (d) Powers, Duties and Functions of the Office
  - (e) Components of the Energy Conservation Plan
- (f) Components of the District Facilities Energy Management Plan

Acres of of other

- (q) Emergency Energy Shortage Contingency Plan
- (h) Coordination of the Energy Research and Development Program
- (i) Annual Report, Annual Energy Supply and Demand Forecast
  - (i) Action by District Agencies and Instrumentalities
  - (k) Budget and Financing
- Sec. 6. Review by the Auditor of the District of Columbia
- Sec. 7. Establishment of the Citizens Energy Advisory Committee
- Sec. 8. Severability
- Sec. 9. Effective Date

BE IT ENACTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA.

That this act may be cited as the "District of Columbia

Office of Energy Act of 1980".

Sec. 2. Legislative Findings and Purposes

(a) The Council of the District of Columbia finds that:

D.C.Code, sec. 1-1901

1077.786

- (1) An adequate, reliable, and continuous supply of energy is essential to the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of the District of Columbia and to sustain the growth of the District's economy.
- (2) The District of Columbia is seriously threatened and adversely affected by the increasing shortages and the escalating prices of nonrenewable energy resources.
- (3) Growth in the consumption of energy resources is due in part to wasteful and inefficient uses of energy, and the continuation of this trend will adversely affect the social, economic and environmental development of the District of Columbia.
- (4) It is the responsibility of the District of Columbia government to encourage and foster a reliable and adequate supply of energy resources for the District at a level consistent with the protection of public health and safety, the promotion of the general welfare

and economic well-being, and the promotion of environmental quality.

- (5) The District of Columbia must provide for the development of a unified energy policy; (A) to minimize duplication and overlapping responsibilities for energy-related matters among various District departments. commissions, and agencies, and (B) to ensure a reliable and adequate supply of energy resources for the District's citizens and economy.
- (6) The establishment of the District of Columbia Dffice of Energy is in the public interest and will prompte the general welfare of the public by assuring coordinated and efficient management of the District's energy policy and programs.
- (b) The purposes of this act are as follows:
- To establish the District of Columbia Office of Energy;
- (2) To provide for the development of a comprehensive energy plan, policy, and programs for the District of Columbia;
- (3) To achieve effective management of energy functions of the District government through the District of Columbia Office of Energy in cooperation with the Public Service Commission of the District of

Columbia, the People's Counsel of the District of Columbia, and all other appropriate District agencies and departments:

- (4) To provide for the development of an emergency energy shortage contingency plan to ensure the health. safety and welfare of District of Columbia citizens and industry during any public emergency, caused by an actual or impending acute shortage of usable energy resources; and
- (5) To encourage and ensure full and effective public participation in formulation and implementation of a District of Columbia energy policy.

  Sec. 3. Definitions

D.C.Code, sec. 1-1902

- As used in this act:
- (1) The term "agency" means and includes any executive department, or other establishment in the executive branch of the District of Columbia government or any independent regulatory agency as defined in section 102(b)(3) of the District of Columbia Administrative Procedure Act, approved October 21, 1968 (82 Stat. 1204; D.C. Code, sec. 1-1502(b)(3).
- (2) The term "appliance" means any energy consuming article or device designed for household use or small business use, the primary purpose of which is labor saving

public utilities servicing a building, is not attached to
the building in such a way that it would be considered a
part of the building or building system. Central heat
bumps, central air conditioners, and central heating units
are not appliances for the purposes of this act.

- (3) The term "building" means any structure which includes provisions for a heating, ventilating or cooling system, or for a hot water system.
- (4) The term "building code" means property standards adopted in the Second Amendment to the Building Code for the District of Columbia, effective September 21, 1977 (D.C. Law 2-18; 54-1 DCRR).
- (5) The term "car pool" means a joint arrangement by a group of private persons in which each in turn drives a privately owned car and carries other passengers.
- (6) The term "construction" means on-site work to
  install permanent equipment or structure for any facility.
- (7) The term "Council" means the Council of the District
  of Columbia.
- (8) The term "Director" means the Director of the
  District of Columbia Office of Energy.
  - (9) The term "District" means the District of Columbia.

- (10) The term "District-assisted facility" means any building, the construction, capital, or operating costs of which are financed in whole or in part by the District's general or special fund appropriations, or dispursements, or by federal funds.
- (11) The term "energy" means work that is, or may be produced from any fuel or source whatspever.
- (12) The term "energy audit" means a process which identifies and specifies the energy and cost savings which are likely to be realized through the purchase and installation of an energy conservation measure or renewable energy resources measure, through improved energy management procedures.
- (13) The term "energy auditor" means any person who has:
  - (A) a valid mechanical, electrical, engineering, or architectural license, or
  - (8) successfully completed an approved District of Columbia energy audit training course for those persons familiar with heating, ventilating, and air conditioning systems, or
- (C) otherwise qualified by virtue of training or experience.

- (14) The term "energy conservation" means the efficient use of energy resources.
- (15) The term "energy conservation measure" means a
  modification which has been determined by means of an energy
  audit or by a rule of the District of Columbia Office of
  Energy to likely improve the efficiency of energy use.
- (16) The term "energy distributor" means any person who imports energy resources into the District of Columbia for use, distribution, storage, or sale; and any person who produces, refines, manufactures, blends, or compounds energy resources, and sells, uses, stores or distributes the same within the District: PRDVIDED, HOWEVER, That in no case shall a retail dealer be construed to be a distributor.
- (17) The term "energy efficiency guidelines" means, with respect to particular buildings, industrial plants, appliances, or energy resource consuming articles, the measures, or minimum accepted levels of energy conservation which the District of Columbia Office of Energy determines to be appropriate for the location and category of such or similar buildings, industrial plants, appliances, energy resources, or energy consuming articles.
- (18) The term "energy information" includes (A) all information in whatever form of (i) fuel reserves.

  exploration, extraction, and energy resources (including

petrochemical feedstocks; wherever located, (ii) production, distribution, and consumption of energy and fuels wherever carried on, and (B) matters relating to energy and fuels, such as corporate structure and proprietary relationships, costs, prices, capital investment, assets, and other matters directly related thereto, wherever they exist.

- (19) The term "energy resources" means any force or material which yields, or has the potential to yield energy, including, but not limited to electricity, petroleum products, residual fuel oil, distillate fuel oil, natural qas, methane, liquified natural qas, manufactured or synthetic fuel gases, coal, solid wastes, piomass, wood, solar radiation, qeothermal or mineral formations, thermal gradients, wind, water, anriched uranium U235 and U238, plutonium U239, or other nuclear fuels.
- (20) The term "environmental residual" means any pollutant or pollution-causing factor which results from any activity.
- (21) The term "life-cycle cost" means the total costs
  of owning, operating, and maintaining a building, industrial
  plant, appliance, or energy consuming article over its
  economic life, including its fuel and energy costs,
  determined on the basis of a systematic evaluation and

comparison of alternative costs for such buildings, industrial plants, appliances or energy consuming afticles.

- (22) The term "life-cycle cost analysis" means the
  estimation and comparison of the life-cycle costs of
  buildings, industrial plants, appliances, or energy
  consuming articles so as to increase the efficient use of a
  particular building, industrial plant, appliance, or energy
  consuming article.
- (23) The term "Mayor" means the Mayor of the District of Columbia.
- (24) The term "non residential building" means any
  building which is not a residential building which,
  including, but is not limited to: multi-purpose buildings,
  such as school learning centers, office/retail buildings,
  hospitals, sports arenas, retail Stores, and transportation
  terminals.
- (25) The term "Office" means the District of Columbia

  Diffice of Energy established by this act.
- (26) The term "performance standards" means rules and requiations adopted by the Office which establish minimum acceptable levels of site design, site preparation, exterior and interior appurtenances which apply to buildings or industrial plants, or which establish minimum acceptable

levels of life-cycle cost and life-cycle cost analysis.

which apply to purchasing and procurement practices.

- (27) The term "person" means any individual, public or private corporation, partnership, firm, association, organization, trustee or other fiduciary, company, board, bureau, commission, department, authority, agency, committee, council, legislative committee, public agency, oublic utility, the District or any agency or instrumentality thereof, and the United States to the extent authorized by federal law or other legal entity.
- (28) The term "renewable energy source" means energy resources which are capable of being continuously restored by natural or other means, or which are so large as to be useable for centuries without significant depletion, and include, but are not limited to solar radiation, solid wastes, biomass, wind, geothermal formations, tidal and other water resources, thermal gradients, deuterium, and nydrogen.
- (29) The term "renewable energy resource measure" means a modification which has been determined by means of an energy audit or a rule of the District of Columbia Office of Energy to involve changing, in whole or in part, the energy resources used to meat the requirements of any building or

Emperied Pricings

renewable energy source.

- (30) The term "residential" means any building which is exclusively residential or residential mixed-purpose buildings, includings but not limited to residential, retail, office, or recreational.
- (31) The term "retail dealer" means any person who
  engages in the business of selling energy resources from a
  delivery vehicle or from a fixed location, such as a service
  station, filling station, store, or garage, directly to the
  ultimate users of said energy resources.

Sec. 4. Energy Policy of the District of Columbia D.C.Code, sec. 1-190.

The energy policy of the District of Columbia shall be the following:

- (a) to ensure, to the maximum extent practicable, an adequate, economically affordable, and reliable supply of energy for all citizens, businesses, and industries in the District:
- (b) to foster prudent research, development, and use,
  within the District, of a diverse array of energy resources,
  with emphasis on renewable energy resources;
- (c) to employ energy conservation techniques, including performance standards, and energy audits; in the design, construction and renovation of District-owned and assisted

For Mary of ARABINEL

facilities, and in the procurement of District materials and supplies for the District government;

- (d) to promote energy conservation in the Construction and operation of residential and non-residential buildings through energy efficienct quidelines, energy audits, and through proven techniques for heating, lighting, cooling, ventilating, insulating and building design and operation;
- (e) to cooperate and assist departments and other agencies or instrumentalities of federal, state, and local government, in the development, implementation, and coordination of energy policies and programs;
- (f) to encourage energy efficient modes of transportation for people and goods, including, but not limited to public transportation, park-and-ride lots, van pools and car pools, electric and hybrid vehicles; and other energy efficient forms of transportation, variable work schedules, preferential traffic controls, and urban area traffic restrictions;
- (q) to assist District citizens and industry, during emergency energy shortages, in managing scarce energy resources in order to maintain the public health, safety, and welfare, and to minimize the adverse impact on the physical, social, and economic well-being of the District of Columbia;

- (h) to assist and advise industries, businesses and public utilities of the District in the application of energy conservation and supply enforcement measures in industrial and commercial apparatus and processes, and to promote the availability of reliable and abundant energy resources for the use of industrial, commercial, and public utility energy users in the District;
- (i) to promote community development and job creation by encouraging the establishment of District-based conservation and renewable energy businesses and cooperatives.
- (i) to promote and secure the location within the

  District of Columbia of projects, programs, installations,

  qrants, loans, funds, and other public or private capital

  investments for the research, development, innovation and

  demonstration of uses, processes, apparatuses, and other

  applications of energy technologies utilizing renewable

  energy resources:
- (k) to assure that the District's energy policies and
  plans developed under this act shall be, to the maximum
  extent practicable, consistent with the statutory
  environmental policies of the District;
- (1) to protect energy consumers and users from unfair, deceptive, and anti-competitive acts and practices employed

3,47

in the marketing. advertising. and selling of energy conserving goods and services;

- (m) to utilize public funds as a means of ensuring equity in the way energy costs are allocated, including, but not limited to programs which will aid low and moderate income citizens in developing energy efficient housing, in qaining access to renewable sources of energy and in meeting the costs of high utility bills;
- (n) to assist small businesses in developing energy efficient management techniques, and assist with energy conservation efforts as well as other related activities which will alleviate the burden of escalating costs;
- (o) to provide a source of impartial and objective information in order that this energy policy may be achieved; and
- (p) to encourage and ensure full and effective public participation in the formulation and implementation of a District energy policy.

Sec. 5. Functions and Powers of the District of Columbia D Sec. 5. Functions and Powers of the District of Columbia D

D.C.Code, sec. 1-1904

- (a) Establishment of the District of Columbia Office of Energy.
- (1) The District of Columbia Office of Energy is:
  established in the Executive Branch of the Government of the

District of Columbia, and shall have the powers, duties, and functions vested in it by the provisions of this act.

- assigned to the District of Columbia Energy Unit of the Executive Office of the Mayor, shall be transferred to the District of Columbia Office of Energy. All positions, personnel, property, records, and unexpended balances of appropriations, allocations, and other funds available relating to the powers, duties, and functions so transferred, are transferred to the District of Columbia Office of Energy as created by this act.
- (b) Appointment of the Director of the District of
  Columbia Office of Energy.

The administrator and head of the Office shall be

the Director of the District of Columbia Office of Energy,

who shall be a person qualified by training and experience

to perform the duties of the Office. The Director shall be

a resident of the District of Columbia and shall be

appointed by the Mayor, and confirmed by the Council of the

District of Columbia.

(c) Powers, duties, and functions of the Director.

The Director shall:

- (1) supervise, direct, and account for the administration and operation of the Office, its units, functions, and employees;
- (2) coordinate and facilitate the overall effort of the District of Columbia government to achieve energy conservation and renewable resource utilization by devising pertinent policies, plans, and programs;
- (d) Powers, duties, and functions of the Office.
  The District of Columbia Office of Energy is authorized to:
- (1) Advise the Mayor on current or impending energy related problems and to serve as the lead agency to develop and implement the District's response to Such problems;
- (2) Act as central repository and clearinghouse for the collection and public inspection of data and information with respect to energy resources and energy matters in the District, including, but not limited to:
- (A) data on energy supply, demand, costs, projections, and forecasts; and
- (B) inventory data on anergy research and development projects, studies or other programs conducted in the District under public and private supervision or sponsorship of both and the results thereof. The Office

shall develop an energy information reporting system for use by all government agencies and by the general public;

- (3) Develop and recommend to the Mayor a comprehensive long-range District energy plan to achieve maximum effective management, and use of present and future sources of energy, including, but not limited to an energy conservation plan, a District facilities energy management plan, an annual energy supply and demand forecast, an emergency energy shortage contingency plan, and an energy research and development program;
- programs mandated by the federal energy conservation acts:
  the 1975 Energy Policy and Conservation Act (42 U+S+C+ sec+
  6201)+ the 1976 Energy Conservation and Production Act (42
  U+S+C+ sec+ 6801)+ the National Energy Conservation Policy
  Act of 1978 (42 U+S+C+ sec+ 8201)+ and any subsequent
  federal energy conservation and related legislation;
  identify additional federal or other grant opportunities for
  District of Columbia energy programs+ and coordinate the
  preparation and submission of energy grant applications for
  pther departments+ offices+ and agencies: PROVIDED+
  HOWEVER+ That no provisions of this act shall be construed
  to limit the authority of any independent commission+

office, board or agency of the District of Columbia to apply for and receive federal and private grants;

- (5) Develop and implement a District of Columbia Fuel Allocation Program in a manner consistent with District energy policies.
- (6) Act as the lead agency to represent the District before the federal government, other state and local governments, regional governments, and other appropriate public and private agencies in all energy and energy resource matters;
- (7) Promote the development of energy-related businesses and employment in the District of Columbia. With special emphasis on renewable resource technologies and markets;
- (8) Promote the application of energy conservation and renewable resource principles and policies in land use planning, zoning, building regulations, capital improvements, and lease agreements for government offices or other space needs;
- (9) Coordinate the development and implementation of energy assistance policies and programs for low-income. fixed-income. and elderly households;
- (10) Require, in order to assure the adequate development of relevant energy information as provided in

naragraph (2). that all energy distributors and major energy consumers file such reports, data, and forecasts as the Dffice may require.

- (A) In obtaining information under this paragraph, the Office:
  - (i) shall, to the maximum extent feasible, provide that reports, data, and forecasts be consistent with material required by the District of Columbia and federal agencies in order to prevent unnecessary duplication;
  - (ii) may, with the written consent of the

    Mayor, subpoens witnesses, material, and relevant books,

    papers, accounts, records and memorands; administer

    paths; and cause the deposition of persons residing

    within or without the District to be taken in the manner

    prescribed for depositions in civil actions in the

    Superior Court of the District of Columbia.
- (8) Information furnished under this paragraph
  shall be confidential and maintained as such, if so
  requested by the person providing the information, if the
  information is proprietary in nature. Nothing in this
  subsection shall prohibit the use of confidential
  information to prepare statistics or other general data for
  publication when so presented as to prevent identification

of particular persons or sources; nor shall the confidentiality requirement of this subsection apply to information furnished by, or relating to governmental agencies, or to public utilities, or to carriers regulated by the Public Service Commission or by the Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Commission, or by any of the federal regulatory agencies; PRDVIDED, That utility customer account information shall remain confidential unless such confidentiality is expressly waived by the individual customer whose account is affected:

- (11) Provide for the training and certification of energy auditors, and provide for such energy audits as may be deemed necessary and desirable to carry out the purposes, programs and policies of this act or any other energy-related law applicable to the District; to the maximum extent feasible, the energy audit program should be carried out as a decentralized, neighborhood-based effort;
- (12) Require the annual submission of energy audit reports and conservation plans by departments, offices, boards, bureaus, commissions, authorities, and other agencies or instrumentalities of the District, and in cooperation with the Department of General Services, evaluate the plans and the progress of the agencies and instrumentalities in meeting the goals of the plans, and

advise the agencies and instrumentalities of improvements or changes to be made in their plans, programs, and goals;

- (13) Conduct hearings and investigations in order to carry out the purposes, programs, and policies of this act, and to issue subpoenss in furtherance of such authority;
- (14) Assist the Corporation Counsel and Office of
  Consumer Protection in safeguarding consumers from unfair,
  deceptive, and anticompetitive acts and practices in the
  marketing, selling, or distributing of energy, energy
  resources, energy technologies, and energy conserving goods
  or services;
- (15) Evaluate policies governing the establishment of rates and prices for energy as related to energy conservation, and through formal intervention before the District of Columbia Public Service Commission recommend changes in energy pricing policies and rate schedules:
- (16) Appoint, with the written consent of the Mayor, such advisory committees, boards, and task forces as are necessary and desirable to carry out the purposes and policies of this act; and
- (17) Promulgate regulations pursuant to the District of Columbia Administrative Procedure Act. approved October 21.

  1968 (82 Stat. 1204; D.C. Code. sec. 1-1501 et seg.). to

conduct public hearings. and to fulfill all duties and responsibilities of the Office granted pursuant to this act.

- (e) Components of the Energy Conservation Plan-
- (1) The Office shall prepare and recommend, as part of a Comprehensive Energy Plan for the District, an Energy Conservation Plan for transmittal to the Mayor; the initial plan to be completed one hundred eighty (180) days after monies have been appropriated to fund the District of Columbia Office of Energy.
- (2) The Energy Conservation Plan shall be designed to ensure the public health, safety, and welfare of the citizens and economy of the District of Columbia and to encourage and promote conservation of energy through reducing wasteful, uneconomical, or inefficient uses.
- (3) The Energy Conservation Plan may include, but not be limited to the following:
- (A) recommendations for District energy conservation quals, consisting of a percentage change in projected energy consumption in the District for the years 1981, 1985, and 1990; which goals are economically feasible and are achievable by implementation of the Energy Conservation Plan; and specific plans of action to achieve these quals;

- (B) recommendations for a continuing program

  of public education, to increase public awareness of the

  energy and cost savings likely to result from energy

  conservation; and to provide public information and

  technical assistance in the planning, financing, installing,

  and monitoring of energy conservation measures;
- (C) recommendations to the District of
  Columbia Department of Transportation of programs and
  policies to encourage energy efficient modes of
  transportation for people and goods, including, but not
  limited to public transportation, park-and-ride lots, van
  pools and carpools, electric and hybrid vehicles, and other
  energy efficient forms of transportation, variable working
  schedules, preferential traffic controls, and urban area
  traffic restrictions;
- (D) recommendations of energy conservation
  measures and renewable energy resource measures which;
  - (i) can be carried out in residential and nonresidential buildings;
  - (ii) increase the efficient use of energy; and
  - (iii) are economically feasible to

    implement, based on climatic, environmental,

    demographic, architectural, and economic conditions

within the District; and recommend programs and policies to encourage, promote, and finance such measures; and

- (E) any other recommendations which the Office considers to be a significant part of a District-wide energy conservation effort and goal, and which include provisions for sufficient incentives to further energy conservation.
- (4) The Energy Conservation Plan may include a detailed description of the following:
  - (A) the estimated energy savings;
- (B) the estimated effects on public budgets and revenues;
  - (C) the estimated impact on District economy;
- (D) the estimated increase or decrease in environmental residuals as a result of implementing the Plan; and
- (E) the estimated impact of existing energy plans on District economy.
- (5) The Energy Conservation Plan shall contain proposals for implementing the recommendations made pursuant to paragraph (3) as can be carried out by order of the Mayor.
- (6) The Office shall hold such public hearings on the Energy Conservation Plan as it daems necessary and

Lu-lied Coffinal

desirable. Upon completion of the Energy Conservation Plan and public hearings on such Plan, the Office shall transmit the Plan to the Mayor for approval or disapproval. Upon approval of the Plan, the Mayor shall assign administrative responsibility to appropriate agencies of the District government for implementation of the Plan as may be carried out by order of the Mayor.

- (7) The Mayor shall transmit the approved Energy

  Conservation Plan to the Council of the District of Columbia

  and make copies available for public inspection.
- (8) At least once every three (3) years, or
  whenever such changes take place as would significantly
  affect energy supply or demand in the District, the Office
  shall review and, if necessary, revise the Energy
  Conservation Plan, transmitting the revised Plan to the
  Mayor. The public hearing procedures contained in paragraph
  (6) shall not apply to any review or revisions of the Energy
  Conservation Plan which take place within three (3) years of
  any public hearings held on the Plan or a revised Plan.
- (f) Components of the District Facilities Energy
  Management Plan.
- (1) The Office shall coordinate the preparation of.

  and recommend as part of the Comprehensive Energy Plan for
  the District, a Facilities Energy Management Plan for

transmittal to the Mayor, the initial Plan to be completed one hundred eighty (180) days after monies have been appropriated to fund the District of Columbia Office of Energy.

- (2) The District Facilities Energy Management Plan shall be designed to ensure that energy conservation methods and life-cycle cost analysis are employed in the design. acquisition. lease, construction, renovation, and maintenance of all new and existing District-assisted facilities, and in the procurement and purchase of all District materials, supplies, and vehicles.
- (3) The District Facilities Energy Management Plan may include, but not be limited to the following:
- of a life-cycle cost analysis method to be applied and enforced by the Department of General Services in reviewing the design. construction, renovation, and maintenance of District-owned facilities, and in the procurement of District materials, supplies, and venicles. The Department of General Services shall also have the authority to review the design, construction, renovation, and maintenance of District-assisted facilities only for the purposes of advising the management of such facilities with respect to

Athere interest

application of the life-cycle cost analysis methods
developed under this paragraph.

- (B) A program of energy audits of Districtowned and District-assisted facilities, which audits shall,
  to the extent practicable, be developed and maintained by
  periodic revision in cooperation with designated
  representatives of said facilities.
- (C) Development, maintenance, and distribution

  to District-buned and District-assisted facilities of

  quidelines, recommendations, and technical assistance for

  energy conservation measures and renewable energy resource

  measures to be employed, installed, and monitored in the

  facilities and in the procurement and purchase of materials,

  supplies, and venicles by the District government.
- (D) A detailed description of the estimated
  energy savings, effect on public budgets and revenues,
  impact on the District economy, and increase or decrease in
  environmental residuals of implementing the District
  Facilities Energy Management Plan.
- (4) The District Facilities Energy Management Plan
  may contain proposals for the implementation of such
  recommendations as may be carried out by order of the Mayor.
- (5) Upon completion of the draft Plan, the Office and the Mayor shall follow the procedures as outlined in

Andrew Salinana

sections (5)(e). (6). C(7): EXCEPT. That no public mearings on the Plan shall be required.

- (6) The Office shall update the District Facilities Energy Management Plan\* upon a finding by the Office that an update is justified.
  - (q) Emergency Energy Shortage Contingency Plan-
- (1) The Office, in cooperation and consultation with the Public Service Commission, Office of People's Counsel, and the Office of Emergency Preparedness and other appropriate District agencies shall, as part of the Comprehensive Energy Plan for the District, prepare a recommended Emergency Energy Shortage Contingency Plan for transmittal to the Mayor, the initial plan to be completed one hundred eighty (180) days after monies have been appropriated to fund the District of Columbia Office of Energy.
- (2) The Emergency Energy Shortage Contingency Plan shall be designed to protect the public health, safety, and welfare, minimize the adverse impact on the physical, social, and economic well-being of the District, and provide for the fair and equitable allocation of scarce energy resources, during emergency energy shortages.
- (3) In preparing the Plan. the Office small collect and compile from all relevant governmental agencies.

Darell . A same

Emergency Preparedness. and the United States Department of Energy. any existing contingency and energy allocation or curtailment plans for dealing with emergency energy shortages, or information related thereto.

- nearings, investigate and review the plans submitted

  pursuant to this subsection, and shall approve and recommend

  to the Mayor, the Emergency Energy Shortage Contingency Plan

  to be implemented upon adoption by the Council and signed by

  the Mayor. The Plan may be based upon the plans collected

  and compiled by the Office, and upon the information

  provided at the hearing(s): PROVIDED, MOWEVER, That the

  Plan is consistent with such federal programs and

  regulations that are already in effect at that time.
- (5) The Emergency Energy Shortage Contingency Plan
  may include, but not be limited to:
- (A) recommendations for differentiated

  curtailment. during an emergency energy shortage of energy

  consumption by energy users on the basis of ability by users

  and energy distributors to accommodate such curtailments;
- (B) a variety of strategies and staged

  conservation measures of increasing intensity and authority

  to reduce energy use during a state of emergency declared

pursuant to section 412(a) of the District of Columbia Self-Government and Governmental Reorganization Act, approved

December 24. 1973 (87 Stat. 788; D.C. Code, sec. 1-146(a)),

by reason of an emergency energy snortage, and guidelines

and criteria for allocation of energy resources to priority

users during such an emergency. The Plan shall contain

alternative conservation actions and allocation plans to

reasonably meet various foreseeable shortage circumstances

and to allow a choice of appropriate responses;

31

(C) evidence that the Plan is consistent with the requirements for emergency energy conservation and allocation laws and regulations of the federal government and the District of Columbia Public Service Commission; and with procedures for implementing the District's responsibility as mandated by any federal programs, laws, orders, rules or regulations relating to the allocation, conservation, or consumption of energy resources, and all orders, rules and regulations thereto;

(D) a scheduled program of such investigations and studies by the Office as are necessary to determine if and when emergency energy shortages are likely to affect the District;

Interior

- (E) recommendations for administrative and legislative action required to avert emergency energy shortages; and
- (F) recommendations for procedures for fair and equitable review of complaints and requests for special exemptions from emergency conservation measures or emergency allocations.
- (6) Upon completion of the draft recommended Plan, the Office and the Mayor shall follow the procedures as nutlined in section 5(e)(6) & 7: EXCEPT. That no public hearings on the Plan Shall be required other than pursuant to subsection (h)(4).
- (7) The Office may update the Emergency Energy
  Shortage Contingency Plan at least every three (3) years or
  whenever such changes are deemed necessary.
- (h) Coordination of the Energy Research and Development
  Program.

The Office, in cooperation and consultation with the institutions of higher education in the District, the United States Department of Energy, and other interested and qualified sources of expertise, may, as part of a Comprehensive Energy Plan, develop and carry out an Energy Research and Development Program designed to encourage

implementation of the District policies contained in section 3.

- (i) Annual Report. Annual Energy Supply and Demand
- (1) The Director shall make an annual report of the Office's operations to the Mayor and to the Council. Such report may include, but not be limited to:
- (A) an overview of city-wide growth and development as they relate to further requirements for energy in the District. including natterns of community development and change. shifts in transportation modes. modifications in building types and designs, and other trends and factors which, as determined by the Office, will significantly affect District energy needs;
- (B) a forecast of city-wide end-use sector energy demand and city-wide energy resource supply available for the coming year;
- (C) an assessment of growth trends in energy consumption and production and an identification of potential adverse social, economic, or environmental impacts which might be imposed by current trends;
- (D) estimates of energy savings, effect on public budgets and revenues, impact on the District economy, and increase, or decrease, in environmental residuals in the

District of plans, programs and policies of this act and federal plans, programs and policies implemented in the coming year;

- (E) inventory and evaluation of energy
  research and development programs carried out in the past
  year or scheduled to be carried out in the coming year;
- (F) recommendations to the Mayor and to the Council for administrative and legislative actions on energy watters; and
- (G) a summary review of the Office's activities during the year.
  - (j) Action by District Agencies and Instrumentalities.
- (1) Within three (3) months of the date that monies

  are appropriated for the Office of Energy. all District

  agencies and instrumentalities shall do the following:
- (A) review their present statutory authority,
  administrative rules and regulations, and practices and
  procedures to determine whether such are consistent with the
  nurposes and policies of this act;
- (B) effect or recommend such changes as may be necessary to comply with the purposes and policies of this act;
- (C) designate one (1) officer or employee from each agency or instrumentality to serve as the official

responsible for energy matters within the respective agency or instrumentality; and

- (D) submit a written report to the Office of its findings and actions pursuant to this paragraph.
- (2) The Office shall prepare and distribute at the earliest feasible date after the effective date of this act. an index of functions and responsibilities of District agencies and instrumentalities. relating to energy and energy resources. in sufficient detail to guide the public and serve as a basis for further steps as may be necessary to assure full coordination without duplication of the energy-related activities of the agencies and instrumentalities. No later than one hundred eighty (180) days after completion of the index. the Office shall recommend to the Mayor and to the Council. Such action as may be necessary to preclude any identified or potential duplication of energy and energy resource related functions and responsibilities of District agencies and instrumentalities.
  - (k) Budget and Financing.
- (1) The Director shall prepare a proposed budget for the operation of the Office to be submitted for the consideration of the Mayor and the Council.

(2) The Office shall be operated within the limitation of the appropriations and grants or other funds for which it qualifies, in accordance with approved programs.

Sec. 6. Review by the Auditor of the District of Columbia

D.C.Code, sec. 1-1905

Above the second

In the first year and every three (3) to four (4) years thereafter, the Auditor of the District of Columbia shall conduct an audit of the Office. The audit shall be completed and the results and report thereof submitted to the Mayor and to the Council by April 1st. of the year following the audit. The report small recommend whether or not the Office should continue in operation. should be changed or modified, or should be dissolved; and shall contain findings on which to base such recommendations.

Sec. 7. Establishment of the Citizens Energy Advisory D.C.Code, Committee

sec. 1-1906

- (a) There is established the Citizens Energy Advisory Committee.
- (b) The purpose of the Committee is to advise the Mayor and the Office regarding important energy issues, including energy supplies, energy costs, energy demands and conservation, financing mechanisms, special needs of lowincome and elderly households, emergency procedures, and

extent feasible, staff support from the Office. The
Committee shall also advise the Mayor and the Office on
District of Columbia energy policies and programs and the
propanization and effectiveness of the District of Columbia
Office of Energy. However, the function of the Committee
shall not be interpreted as supplanting the oversight role
of the Council of the District of Columbia. The Committee's
advice to the Mayor and to the Office shall include, but not
be limited to the following:

- (1) the creation of financing mechanisms adequate to insure a program which can properly protect the interests of District citizens through vigorous application of conservation and renewable technologies;
- (2) the creation of effective conservation programs, with particular attention to devising means and incentives for conserving energy in tenant-occupied nousing;
- (3) means of insuring equity in the allocation of energy costs, especially in regard to their impact on low and moderate income residents;
- (4) means of maximizing citizen involvement in the programs of the District of Columbia Office of Energy. especially through programs which are neighborhood-based; and

- (5) means of maximizing the job creation potential inherent in the energy issue.
- (c) The Committee shall be composed of District
  representatives of community organizations, labor, business
  associations, public interest groups, utilities, the
  construction industry, and other organizations whose
  activities or concerns include energy matters. All members
  shall be residents of the District, and shall have
  demonstrated experience in some area of community energy
  concerns. At least fifty percent (50%) of the Committee
  shall represent community and consumer interests. Members
  shall be representative of all elements and geographic areas
  of the city.
- (d)(1) The Committee shall consist of twenty-one (21)
  members. Committee members shall be appointed not later
  than fifteen (15) days after monies are appropriated for the
  District of Columbia Office of Energy. Twelve (12) members
  of the Committee shall be appointed by the Mayor, one (1) of
  whom shall be designated as Chairperson of the Committee;
  five (5) members shall be appointed by the Chairman of the
  Council of the District of Columbia; and four (4) members
  shall be appointed by the Chairperson of the Council's
  Committee on Public Services and Consumer Affairs. The

committees, and otherwise organize itself as it shall determine. The Committee may establish its own rules and procedures.

- (2) Terms of membership shall be for three (3)

  years: EXCEPT. That for those of the initial membership.

  one third (1/3) shall be appointed for terms of one (1)

  year. one-third (1/3) for terms of two (2) years. and onethird (1/3) for terms of three (3) years. A member

  appointed to fill the unexpired term of another member shall
  be appointed to fill only the remainder of that term.

  Members may serve only two (2) consecutive terms.
- (3) All terms of office will expire on the anniversary date of the first appointments. Members may continue to serve after the expiration of their terms until they are reappointed or a successor is appointed.
- (e) The Committee shall continue in existence for six (6) years, at which time, it shall be terminated unless reestablished by the Council of the District of Columbia.

Sec. 8. Severability

If any provisions of this act, or of any rule, requiation or order thereunder or the application of such provision to any person or circumstances shall be held invalid, the remainder of this act and application of such provisions of this act or of such rule, regulation or order,

D.C.Code, sec. 1-1907

-4.1

held invalid shall not be affected thereby.

Sec. 9. Effective Date

This act shall take effect after a thirty (30) day period of Congressional review following approval by the Mayor (or in the event of veto by the Mayor, action by the Council of the District of Columbia to override the veto) as provided in section 602(c)(1) of the District of Columbia Self-Government and Governmental Reorganization Act, approved December 24, 1973 (87 State 813; D.C. Code, sec. 1-147(c)(1).

Ohungton a. Dupon

Chairman Council of the District of Columbia

District of Columbia

APPROVED: January 7, 1981

## THE RESERVE OF THE PARTY OF THE

All had been been

THE PARTY OF THE P

manufactured and the state of t

PERSONAL PROPERTY.

# COUNCIL OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

DOCKET NO: B 3-192

VOICE VOTE:	Majo	rity			_						
Absent:	Wils	Wilson									
			18			70					
☐ ROLL CALL W	OTE:				_						
ESUNCIA MEMBER ATE MAT			47E NA	-	4.4	-	_	MAT	a.v.	4	
IXON	$\perp$	KANE		-	_	SHACKLETON				_	
INTER	$\perp$	MASON		_		SPAULDING					
LARKE		MOORE		$\vdash$		WILSON	_			_	
IARDY		RAY		-	_		_	_			
ARUIS		ROLARK		1		Vanne			_	_	
	V-rates	DIS VOIS A 3		4.		CERTIFICAT		-	220	-	
cnon: Adopted	l Fina	l Readin	ıg, C	ons	en	Secretary to				0	
Ø VOICE VOTE:						GIDEN AND STATE					
					_	_					
Absent:	Clar	ke									
Absent:	Clar	ke					_				
Absent:		ke		H			_				
☑ ROLL CALL V	OTE:	ke	ATE   -	· [ •.·	144	COUNCIL WEREEN	448		24.	•	
ROLL CALL V	OTE:		ATE =	-		SHACKLETON	444		7.7.	•	
ROLL CALL V	OTE:	ESUNEL MEMORY	ATE A		-		472	7.67	10.	•	
ROLL GALL V	OTE:	KANE.	STE   E	- ( -	-	SHACKLETON	477		<b>3.6</b>	•	
☑ ROLL CALL V	OTE:	KANE MASON	AVE 2	-   <del>-</del>		SHACKLETON SPAULDING	446		3.6	•	
ROLL CALL V	OTE:	KANF MASON MOORE RAY ROLARK	AVE   2.		-	SHACKLETON SPAULDING	478		T. C.		
TXON TIMER TARKE	OTE:	KANF MASON MOORE RAY ROLARK	ATE   2-	N. 1		SHACKLETON SPAULDING		OF			
ROLL CALL V	OTE:	KANE MASON MOORE RAY ROLARK		N. Y		SHACKLETON SPAULDING WILSON	NOIT	8	REC		
ROLL CALL V	OTE:	KANE MASON MOORE RAY ROLARK		N. Y		SHACKLETON SPAULDING WILSON CERTIFICA	NOIT	8	REC		
ROLL CALL V	OTE:	KANE MASON MOORE RAY ROLARK		H. 1	•	SHACKLETON SPAULDING WILSON CERTIFICAT	TION On the	Con	RECU		
ROLL CALL V  OIXON  INTER  LARKE  ARDY  ABSODI:  ROLL CALL V  ROLL CALL V	OTE:	KANE MASON MOORE RAY ROLARK		H. 1	•	SHACKLETON SPAULDING WILSON CERTIFICAT SOCIETATIVE CRUNCE WEHRER	TION On the	Con	RECU		
ROLL CALL V IXON INTER LARKE ARDY ARVIS  CTION:  Absent:  ROLL CALL V IXON	OTE:	KANE MASON MOORE RAY ROLARK		H. 1		SHACKLETON SPAULDING WILSON CERTIFICAT SOCIETARY OF	TION On the	Con	RECU		
ROLL CALL V IXON INTER LARKE ARDY ARVIS  CTION:	OTE:	KANE MASON MOORE RAY ROLARK WASON		H. 1		SHACKLETON SPAULDING WILSON CERTIFICAT SOCIETATIVE SHACKLETON SPAULDING	TION On the	Con	RECU		
ROLL CALL V DIXON DIXON DINTER LARKE HARDY HARVIS  CTION:  VOICE VOTE: Absent:	OTE:	KANE MASON MOORE RAY ROLARK		H. 1		SHACKLETON SPAULDING WILSON CERTIFICAT SOCIETARY OF	TION On the	Con	RECU		

Secretary to the Courcil